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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Board of Commissioners -
Housing Authority of the City
of Ocean City
Ocean City, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Housing
Authority of the City of Ocean City (the “Authority”), a component unit of the City of Ocean City in the
County of Cape May, State of New Jersey and its component unit, the Ocean City Community
Development Corporation, as of and for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and in compliance with the audit requirements as
prescribed by the Bureau of Authority Regulation, Division of Local Government Services, Department of
Community Affairs, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

As described in Note 15 of the financial statements, the Authority is not presenting the most recent
actuarial disclosures and accruals for its share of liabilities related to its participation in the Public
Employees Retirement System which is administered by the State of New Jersey Division of Pension and
Benefits (Division). These actuarial calculations are the responsibility of the Division and those actuarial
calculations have not yet been released to the individual participating entities. As a result of this delay, the
Authority is reporting the actuarial calculations from the prior year, we are unable to determine if these
disclosures and accruals will differ materially once the current actuarial calculations are released.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, other than the actuarial accruals and disclosures related to pension liabilities discussed in
the paragraph above, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities of the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City and its
component unit the Ocean City Community Development Corporation, as of September 30, 2021 and
2020 and the changes in financial position and, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City’s basic financial statements. The
Other Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and
the Financial Data Schedule as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The Other Supplementary Information, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the Financial Data Schedule as required by
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit



of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Other Supplementary Information, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Financial
Data Schedule are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 30, 2022
on our consideration of the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ford, Scott & Hssociates, L. L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leon P. (ostello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Registered Municipal Accountant
No. 393

June 30, 2022
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

As Management of the Authority, we offer readers of the Authority's financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Authority's financial
statements as presented elsewhere in this report.

A -FinancialHighlights

1 - The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$5,308,473 (net position) as opposed to $2,352,607 for the prior fiscal year.

2 - As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority reported Unrestricted Net Position of
$24,985.

3 — The Authority's cash and cash equivalent balances at September 30, 2020 were $860,272
representing an increase of $553,489 from the prior fiscal year.

4 - The Authority had Total Operating Revenues of $4,247,439 and Total Operating Expenses of
$1,308,169 (Including depreciation $330,660) for the year ended September 30, 2021.

5 - The Authority's capital outlays for the fiscal year were $5,284,255.

B - Using the Annual Report

1 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Authority's financial statements. The Authority's Financial Statements and Notes to Financial
Statements included in this Report were prepared in accordance with GAAP applicable to
governmental entities In the United States of America for Proprietary Fund types.

2 - Financial Statements

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Authority's finances, In a manner similar to a private-sector business. They consist of the
Comparative Statements of Net Position, Comparative Statements of Revenue, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position and Comparative Statements of Cash Flows.

The Comparative Statements of Net Position present information on the Authority's assets
and liabilities with the difference between the two reported as net position. Increases or
decreases in net position serve as a useful indicator of whether the Authority's financial
position is improving or deteriorating.

The Comparative Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present
information showing how the Authority's net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of unrelated cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g.; net pension liability and earned but unused vacation leave).



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

The Comparative Statements of Cash Flows present information showing how the Authority's
cash and cash equivalents position changed during the year. The statements classify cash
receipts and cash payments as resulting from operating. activities, capital and related
financing activities and investing activities.

The financial statements report on the Authority's activities. The activities are primarily
supported by HUD subsidies and grants. The Authority's function is to provide decent, safe
and sanitary housing to low Income and special needs populations.

3 - Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The Notes to Financial
Statements can be found in this report following the financial statements.

4 - Supplemental Information and Required Supplementary Information

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) is presented for purpose of
additional analysis. The Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net pension liability of the
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and Schedule of Authority Contributions to
the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) are also included.

C -The Authority as a Whole

The Authority's Net Position increased $2,955,866 during the fiscal year as detailed below. The
Authority's revenues are primarily construction reimbursements from the City of Ocean City, tenant
revenues and subsidies received from HUD. The Authority receives subsidies each month based on
a pre-approved amount by HUD. Grants are drawn down based on need against a pre-authorized
funding level.

By far, the largest portion of the Authority's net position reflects Its net investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, and equipment less accumulated depreciation). The Authority uses these capital
assets to provide housing services to its tenants. Consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending.

D- Budgetary Highlights

For the year ended September 30, 2021 individual program or grant budgets were prepared by the
Authority and were approved by the Board of Commissioners.

E- Capital Assets and Debt Administration

1 - Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2021, the Authority's net investment in capital assets was $9,522,824
(net of accumulated depreciation of $6,272,386). This net investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings and Improvements, furniture, equipment and machinery, and
construction in progress.

Major capital assets purchased during the current fiscal year totaled $5,284,255. These
expenditures were made in accordance with the Authority's Capital Fund Programs.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

2 - Long Term Debt

The Authority has entered a CDBG — PHA Mortgage Note with the New Jersey Housing and
Mortgage Finance Agency in the amount of $4,505,213. The terms of this note call for zero
percent interest and provided there has been no Event of Default under the Loan Agreement,
annual forgiveness in the amount of 20% of the Principal Sum for a term of five years until
the Loan is forgiven in full. The proceeds of the CDBG Loan will be used to provide repairs
to damaged public housing units, damaged federally-owned housing units and damaged
HUD assisted multi-family units. The project consists of thirty -two rental units that will be
occupied by duly qualified Low- and Moderate-Income families. As of September 30, 2021,
the Authority has drawn down all of the $4,505,213.

F - Significant Changes from FYE September 30, 2021 to September 30, 2020

The Net Capital Assets and Mortgage Note Payable both increased due to the construction costs
incurred and paid for the Speitel Commons at Bayview Manor project.

The Unrestricted net position increased $306,473 as compared to the prior year decrease of
$220,187.

G - Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority's budget for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2021.

1- The state of the economy, particularly its effect on tenant incomes, which are used in
determining tenant rents paid to the Authority.

2- The strain and Congressional Funding in general, and the possible cut-back on HUD
subsidies and grants.

H- Net Position and Changes in Net Position

SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30

2021 2020 2019

Cash & Other Current Assets $ 1,042,292 $ 694,568 $ 435,352
Net Capital Assets 9,522,824 4,569,228 2,663,625
Deferred Outflows of Resources 21,231 21,231 184,543

Total 10,586,347 5,285,027 3,283,520
Total Liabilities $ 4,971,851 $ 2,626,397 $ 721,316
Deferred Inflow of Resources 306,023 306,023 568,849
Net Position 5,308,473 2,352,607 1,993,355

Total 10,586,347 5,285,027 3,283,520
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 5,017,611 $ 2,472,278 $ 2,495,030
Restricted Net Position 265,877 136,552 -
Unrestricted Net Position 24,985 (256,223) (501,675)

Total Net Position $ 5,308,473 $ 2,352,607 $ 1,993,355




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

2021 2020 2019

Revenues:

Tenant Revenues $ 523,080 $ 555,229 § 589,584

HUD Subsidies & Other Grants 758,400 410,376 419,648

City of Ocean City -

Construction Reimbursements 2,956,420

Other Revenue 9,539 147,835 24,560

Total Operating Revenues 4,247,439 1,113,440 1,033,792
Expenses:

Operating Expenses $ 977,509 $ 958,962 $ 905,854

Depreciation 330,660 146,458 165,028

Total Operating Expenses 1,308,169 1,105,420 1,070,882
Deficiency of Operating Revenues

Over Expenses 2,939,270 8,020 (37,090)
Non Operating Revenue & Expenses:

Interest Income 118 192 130

Capital Grants 1,128 144,052 189,416

Actuarial Adjustment to Pension Liability - 191,638 100,627

Actuarial Adjustment to OPEB Liability 15,350 15,350 114,989
Total Increase / (Decrease) 2,955,866 359,252 368,072
Beginning Net Position 2,352,607 1,993,355 1,625,283
Ending Net Position $ 5,308,473 $ 2,352,607 $ 1,993,355

| - Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all
those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the Information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial Information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Housing
Authority of the City of Ocean City, 204 4th Street, Ocean City, New Jersey 08226, or call (609)
399-1062.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Ocean City Ocean City
Ocean City Community Ocean City Community
Housing Development Housing Development
Authority Corporation Authority Corporation
Operating Revenues
Tenant Rental & Other Revenue $ 523,080 $ - $ 555,229 $ -
HUD Grants 722,159 - 410,376 -
CARES Funding - - 44,490 -
CDBG Grant 36,241 - 14,805 -
City of Ocean City - Fire Alarms - - 63,450 -
City of Ocean City - Construction Reimbursements 2,956,420 64,441 - -
Insurance Recovery 281 - - -
Other 9,258 - 25,090 -
Total Operating Revenues 4,247,439 64,441 1,113,440 -
Operating Expenses
Administrative 291,768 108 354,275 -
Tenant Services 42,634 - 18,621 -
Utilities 236,652 - 209,518 -
Ordinary Maintenance & Operations 267,964 - 223,572 -
General Expense 138,491 - 152,976 -
Depreciation Expense 330,660 - 146,458 -
Total Operating Expenses 1,308,169 108 1,105,420 -
Excess (Deficit) of Operating Revenues Over Expenses 2,939,270 64,333 8,020 -
Nonoperating Revenues & (Expenses)
Interest on Investments 118 1 192 -
Actuarial Adjustment to Pension Liability - - 191,638 -
Actuarial Adjustment to OPEB Liability 15,350 - 15,350 -
Capital Grants 1,128 - 144,052 -
Total Nonoperating Revenues & (Expenses) 16,596 1 351,232 -
Increase / (Decrease) in Net Position 2,955,866 64,334 359,252 -
Beginning Net Position 2,352,607 - 1,993,355 -
Ending Net Position $ 5,308,473 $ 64,334 $ 2,352,607 $ -

10



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

2020

Ocean City

Ocean City Community
Housing Development
Authority Corporation

545,137 $ -
531,882 -

20,628 -

(38,879) -
(1,050,028) -

8,740 -

144,052 -
191,638 -
15,350 -
1,928,355 -

(34,703) -
(2,017,359) -

227,333 -

192 -

192 -

236,265 -

2021
Ocean City
Ocean City Community
Housing Development
Authority Corporation
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received from:
Tenants & Rental Income $ 502,903 $ -
Operating Grants 758,398 -
City of Ocean City - Construction Reimbursements 2,956,420 64,441
Other Operating Revenues (22,567) -
Cash Paid to:
Employees (47,176) -
Vendors & Suppliers (980,800) (75)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3,167,178 64,366
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Capital Grants Received 1,128 -
Actuarial Adjustment to Pension Liability - -
Actuarial Adjustment to OPEB Liability 15,350 -
Mortgage Note Proceeds 2,408,264 -
Component Unit Transfers (1,000) 1,000
Acquisition of Property & Equipment - -
Expenditures for Construction in Process (5,284,255) (64,441)
Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (2,860,513) (63,441)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on Investments 118 1
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 118 1
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 306,783 926
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 553,489 -
Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 860,272 $ 926

317,224 -

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operations
Operating Income 2,939,270 64,333
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 330,660 -
Net Deferred Inflows & Outflows - -
Changes in Assets:
Accounts Receivable:

Tenants (net) (16,817) -

Grants (29,724) -

Other (1,958) -
Prepaid Expenses & Other Current Assets 7,983 -

Changes in Liabilities:

Accounts Payable & Accrued Expenses (36,530) 33
Unearned Revenue - Prepaid Tenant Rents (75) -
Due to Other Governments (8,006) -
Security Deposits (3,285) -
Compensated Absences 1,010 -
Accrued OPEB Liability (15,350) -

Accrued Pension Liability - -

553,489 $ -

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operations $ 3,167,178 $ 64,366

8,020 -

146,458 -
(99,513) -

(12,694) -
(1,239) -
(4,462) -
(4,555) -

44,321 -
2,585 -
33,920 -
17 -
3,356 -
(15,350) -
(92,124) -

1"

8,740 $ -




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1: Organization and Activities

The Housing Authority of The City of Ocean City (the Authority) is a governmental entity created
under federal and state housing laws as defined by State statute (N.J.S.A. 40A:12A-1, et. seq.,
the "Housing Authority Act"). The Authority is governed by a board of seven commissioners (the
Commissioners) who serve five year terms. Five of the Commissioners are appointed by the City
Council of the City of Ocean City (the City). One Commissioner is appointed by the Mayor of the
City of Ocean City and one Commissioner is appointed by the Governor of the State of New
Jersey. The governing board is autonomous but is responsible to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development and the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. An
executive director is appointed by the housing authority's Board to manage the day-to-day
operations of the Authority. The Authority is responsible for the development, maintenance and
management of public housing for low and moderate income families residing in the City of Ocean
City, New Jersey. Operating and modernization subsidies are provided to the Authority by the
federal government.

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include any potential component units
in the financial reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statements
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are in-substance part of the government's
operations. Each discretely presented component unit would be or is reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from
the government.

The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting
entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant
manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to
exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing
authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters.

A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service.
Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the government and
/ or its citizens.

A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the
reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the
government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Finally, the nature and significance of a potential component unit to the primary government could
warrant its inclusion within the reporting entity.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the Ocean City Community Development Corporation
is a component unit of the Authority and the Authority is a component unit of the City of Ocean
City. The Mayor and Council of the City of Ocean City appoint six of the seven Commissioners.
These financial statements would be either blended or discreetly presented as a part of the City’s
financial statements if the City reported using generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to governmental entities.

The combined financial statements include all accounts of the Authority. The Authority is the
lowest level of government over which the Authority's Board of Commissioners and Executive
Director exercise oversight responsibility.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 2: Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Authority are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting to recognize the flow of economic resources. Transactions are recognized
when they occur, regardless of when cash is received or disbursed. Revenues are recognized
in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable, and expenses
recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. Operating revenues and expenses consist of
those revenues and expenses that result from the ongoing principal operations of the Authority.
Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related
to financing and investing types of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or
ancillary activities. All assets, liabilities, net position, revenue and expenses are accounted for
using a single enterprise fund for the primary government.

Revenue - The major sources of revenue are various subsidies and grants received from the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, charges to tenants and other
miscellaneous revenues discussed below.

Federal Grant Revenue - Operating Subsidies and Capital Fund Program revenue received
from HUD are recorded under the accrual method of accounting and are recognized in the
period earned in accordance with applicable HUD guidelines. The Authority is generally entitled
to receive funds from HUD under an established payment schedule or as expenditures are
made under the Capital Fund Program or Comprehensive Improvements Assistance Program.

Tenant Charges - Rental charges to tenants are determined and billed monthly and are
recognized as revenue when billed since they are measurable and collectible within the current
period. Amounts not collected at year-end are included in the balance sheet as accounts
receivable, and amounts paid by tenants for the subsequent fiscal year are recorded as deferred
revenue.

Report Presentation - The financial statements included in this Report were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of
America applicable to governmental entities for Proprietary Fund Types. The Authority has
implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
"Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments (Statement No. 34). The Authority also adopted the provisions of Statement No.
37 "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments Omnibus" and Statement No. 38 "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures",
which supplement Statement No. 34. Statement No. 34 established standards for all state and
local governmental entities that Includes a statement of net assets, a statement of activities and
a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net assets into three components -
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt; Restricted Net Assets and Unrestricted Net
Assets. Statement No. 63 "Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of resources, and Net Position" requires the re-naming of the Statement of Net Assets
to the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net Position reports all assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and net position. These
classifications are defined as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component consists of land, construction in
progress and depreciable assets, net of accumulated depreciation and net of the related
debt outstanding. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds as of year-end,
the portion of the debt related to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of
Net Investment in Capital Assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same
net position component as the unspent proceeds.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 2: Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Restricted Net Position - This component includes net assets subject to restrictions
placed on net asset use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
constraints imposed by the law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position - This component consists of net position that does not meet
the definition of Restricted Net Position or Net Investment in Capital Assets.

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

1 - Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market. Cash and cash
equivalents include cash in banks, petty cash and certificates of deposit, and other investments
with original maturities of less than three months from the date of purchase. Investments are
recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

2 - Collection losses on accounts receivable are charged against an allowance for doubtful
accounts.

3 - Buildings and equipment are recorded at cost for all programs and depreciation is computed
on the straight-line basis. Interest costs necessary to place a Capital Asset in its intended location
and condition are capitalized.

4 - Repairs funded out of operations, such as painting, roofing and plumbing, are charged against
income for all programs.

5 - The Authority is subsidized by the Federal Government. The Authority is not subject to Federal
or State income taxes, nor is it required to file Federal and State Income tax returns.

6 - Operating subsidies received from HUD are recorded as income when earned.

7 - The cost of accumulated unpaid compensated absences, including fringe benefits, is reported
in the period earned rather than in the period paid.

8 - Prepaid expenses represent payments made by the Authority in the current year to provide
services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year.

9 - Inventories in the Proprietary Fund consist of supplies and are recorded at the lower of first-in
first-out, cost or market.

10 - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 2: Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

11 - The Authority has elected not to apply to its proprietary activities Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee of Accounting Procedure issued after November
30, 1989.

12 - The Authority does not have any infrastructure assets.

13 - Inter-fund receivables and payables arise from inter-fund transactions and are recorded by
all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are executed.

14 - Long-lived assets to be held and used are tested for recoverability whenever events of
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When
required, impairment losses on assets to be held and used are recognized based on the fair value
of the asset and long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are reported at the lower of carrying
amount or fair value less cost to sell. As of September 30, 2021, the Authority has not recognized
any reduction in the carrying value of its fixed assets.

Budgetary Policy and Control - The housing authority submits its annual operating and capital
budgets to the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs in accordance with New
Jersey statute. After the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs approves the budget, it is
formally adopted by resolution of the Housing Authority's Board of Commissioners. Once adopted,
the Board of Commissioners may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected
modifications are required in estimated revenues and expenses. Each fund's budget is prepared
on a detailed line item basis. Revenues are budgeted by source and expenditures are budgeted
by expense classification within each revenue source.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Effective -

In June 2018, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 89,
“Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the end of a Construction Period”. This statement is
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2020. It is anticipated that this statement
will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.

In May 2019, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 91,
“Conduit Debt Obligations”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December
15, 2020. It is anticipated that this statement will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial
reporting.

In January 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
92, “Omnibus 2020”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
It is anticipated that this statement will not have any material effect on the Authority’s financial
reporting.

In March 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 93,
“Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates”. This statement, which is effective for periods ending
December 31, 2021, will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.

In March 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 94,
“Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements”. This
statement, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods
thereafter, will not have any material effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 2: Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 96,
“Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements”. This statement, which is effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter, will not have any
effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.

In June 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 97,
“Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32”. This statement, which is effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2021, and all reporting periods thereafter, will not have any
material effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.

In October 2021, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
98, “The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report”. This statement, which is effective for periods
ending after December 15, 2021, and all reporting periods thereafter, will not have any material
effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.

In April 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 99,
“Omnibus 2022”. This statement, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2022,
and all reporting periods thereafter, will not have any material effect on the Authority’s financial
reporting.

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 100,
“Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62”. This
statement, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods
thereafter, will not have any effect on the Authority’s financial reporting.

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 100,
“Compensated Absences”. This statement, which is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter, will not have any material effect on the
Authority’s financial reporting.

NOTE 3: Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority maintains cash and investments in local banks. These funds are covered by the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act of the state of New Jersey, which requires the
institutions to pool collateral for all governmental deposits and have the collateral held by an
approved custodian in the institution's name.

Cash and Cash Equivalents of $860,272 and $553,489 at September 30, 2021 and 2020,
consisted of the following:

September 30, September 30,
2021 2020
Checking Accounts $ 822,730 $ 512,662
Tenant Security Deposits 37,342 40,627
Petty Cash 200 200

Total $ 860,272 § 553,489
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
OCEAN CITY, NEW JERSEY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 3: Cash and Cash Equivalents - Continued

The carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents on deposit at financial
institutions as of September 30, 2021, was $860,272 and the bank balances were $903,751.
$270,874 of the bank balances were covered by FDIC insurance the balance of $632,877 was
covered by the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. The Authority's cash and cash
equivalents are categorized as prescribed in GASB 40 to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed by the Authority. As described above the portion of the Authority's deposits that
exceeded FDIC insurance and covered by a collateral pool maintained by the banks as required

by News Jersey statutes.

NOTE 4: Tenant Accounts Receivable

Tenant accounts receivable are $37,444 and $20,628 at September 30, 2021 and 2020,

respectively.

NOTE 5: Inter-Program Receivables and Payables

At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority had no inter-program accounts receivable or

payable.

NOTE 6 — Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue of $8,535 and $8,610 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively,

represents prepaid tenant rents.

NOTE 7 - Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist primarily of expenditures to acquire, construct, place in operation and
improve the facilities of the Authority and are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The
following is a summary of the changes in fixed assets for the fiscal years ended September 30,

2021 and 2020:

September 30, September 30,
2020 Additions Deletions 2021

Land $ 352,648 $ $ $ 352,648
Buildings & Improvements 7,516,041 7,583,430 15,099,471
Furniture, Equipment & Machinery 343,091 343,091
Construction in Progress 2,299,175 (2,299,175) -
Total Fixed Assets 10,510,955 7,583,430 (2,299,175) 15,795,210
Accumulated Depreciation (5,941,727) (330,659) (6,272,386)
Net Fixed Assets $ 4,569,228 $ 7,252,771 $ (2,299,175) $ 9,522,824
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NOTE 7 - Fixed Assets - Continued

September 30, September 30,
2019 Additions Deletions 2020

Land $ 352,648 $ $ $ 352,648
Buildings & Improvements 7,516,041 7,516,041
Furniture, Equipment & Machinery 308,388 34,703 343,091
Construction in Progress 281,816 2,017,359 2,299,175
Total Fixed Assets 8,458,893 2,052,062 - 10,510,955
Accumulated Depreciation (5,795,269) (146,458) (5,941,727)
Net Fixed Assets $ 2,663,624 $ 1,905,604 $ - $ 4,569,228

Depreciation expense for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 amounted to
$330,659 and $146,458, respectively.

Expenditures are capitalized when they meet the Authority's Capitalization policy. Under that
policy, assets purchased or constructed at a cost not exceeding $1,000 are expensed when
incurred. Depreciation of Fixed Assets is provided using the straight-line method for reporting
purposes at rates based upon the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 Years
Improvements 15 Years
Furniture 5 Years
Equipment 5 Years
Vehicles 5 Years

NOTE 8 — Due to Other Governments

Under Federal, State and local law, the Authority's programs are exempt from income, property
and excise taxes. However, the Authority is required to make a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
in accordance with the provisions of its Cooperation Agreement with the City of Ocean City. Under
the Cooperation Agreement, the Authority must pay the City the lesser of 10% of its net shelter
rent or the approximate full real property taxes. During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021
and 2020, PILOT expense was accrued in the amount of $28,306 and $33,920 respectively.

The total Due to Other Governments at September 30, 2020 and 2019 is $69,226 and $70,232,
respectively.

NOTE 9 — Accrued Compensated Absences

Accrued compensated absences of $13,255 and $12,245 at September 30, 2021 and 2020,
represent amounts of accumulated leave for which employees are entitled to receive payment in
accordance with the Authority's Personnel Policy. Employees may be compensated for
accumulated vacation leave in the event of retirement or termination from service at 100% of the
time accumulated, to a maximum of thirty (30) days in addition to the amount accrued in the year
of retirement or termination. Employees may be compensated for accumulated sick leave in the
event of retirement at the rate of one day for every two days accumulated at the current rate of
pay, with a maximum not to exceed $12,000.
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NOTE 10 — Other Post-Employment Benefits

Annual OPEB Cost & Net OPEB Liability —

The Authority's annual OPEB cost represents the accrued cost for post-employment benefits under GASB
75. The cumulative difference between the annual OPEB cost and the benefits paid during a year will result
in a net OPEB obligation. The annual OPEB cost is equal to the annual required contribution (ARC) less
adjustment if a net OPEB obligation exists. The ARC is equal to the normal cost and amortization of the
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) plus interest.

Actuarial Methods & Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by employer and plan members) and
include the types of benefits provided at the time each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing benefit costs between employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal as a Level % of Payroll
Investment Rate of Return Not Applicable

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets Not Applicable

Discount Rate 2.92%

Health Care Cost Trends Year 1 Trend — 8.00%

Ultimate Trend — 5.00%

In the October 1, 2019 actuarial valuation, the Actuarily Determined Contribution for the year ending
September 30, 2021 was projected as follows:

9/30/2021
Service Cost $ -
Interest on OPEB Liability 7,064.00
Actuarily Determined Contribution 7,064.00
Actual Contribution 22,414.00
Excess Contribution $ 15,350.00
Covered Payroll $ 48,361.00

Actuarily Determined Contribution
as a % of Covered Payroll 14.61%
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NOTE 10 — Other Post-Employment Benefits - Continued

The following reflects the change in the Total OPEB Liability as of the October 1, 2020 valuation date for
the Year ended September 30, 2021.
9/30/2021

OPEB Liability, Beginning of Year $ 222,441.00

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost -
Interest 7,064.00
Assumption Changes & Difference
Between Actual & Expected Experience

Benefit Payments (22,414.00)
OPEB Liability, End of Year $ 207,091.00
Covered payroll (for Covered Participants) $ 48,361.00

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered payroll 428.23%

The October 1, 2020 valuation was prepared using a discount rate of 2.92%. If the discount rate were 1%
higher than what was used in this valuation, the Total OPEB Liability would decrease to $194.458 or 6.10%.
If the discount rate were 1% lower than was used in this valuation, the Total OPEB Liability would increase
to $221,173 or 6.80%.

Discount Rate

1% Decrease Baseline 2.92% 1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability — $ 221,173 § 207,091 § 194,458

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates.

The October 1, 2020 valuation was prepared using an initial trend rate of 8.00%. If the trend rate were 1%
higher than what was used in this valuation, the Total OPEB Liability would increase to $220,759 or by
6.60%. If the trend rate were 1% lower than was used in this valuation, the Total OPEB Liability would
decrease to $194,666 or by 6.00%.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

1% Decrease Baseline 0.00% 1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability — $ 194,666 $ 207,091 § 220,759

For the year ended September 30, 2021, the Actuarily determined OPEB expense was $7,064. There were
reported deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to OPEB.
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NOTE 11 — Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Authority carries commercial
insurance. During the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority's risk
management program, in order to deal with potential liabilities, consisted of various insurance
policies for fire, general liability, crime, auto and public-officials errors and omissions. Periodically,
but not less than once annually, the Authority conducts a physical Inspection of its Projects for
determining potential liability issues. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has
occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Settled claims relating to the
commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance in any of the past three fiscal
years.

NOTE 12 - Economic Dependency

For the year ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, a substantial portion of the Authority's
revenues were received from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development,
which are subject to availability of funds and Congressional approval, as well as the Authority's
compliance with Federal rules and regulations.

NOTE 13 - Other Revenue

Other revenue of $9,258 at September 30, 2021, consists primarily Non-Dwelling Rent and
Laundry Service. Other revenue of $25,090 at September 30, 2020, consists primarily Non-
Dwelling Rent and Laundry Service.

NOTE 14 — Pension Plans

Description of Plans

Substantially all the entity’s employees participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement System
(PERS) cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan which has been established
by State Statute and is administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits
(Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of the System
will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the System terminate. The Division issues a
publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System. These reports may be
obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625 or the report can be accessed on the internet at:

http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrprts.shtml.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’ Retirement System
(PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide
retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The PERS is a
cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time
employees of the State of New Jersey or any county, Authority, school district or public agency,
provided the employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered retirement
system or other state pension fund or local jurisdiction’s pension fund.
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NOTE 14 — Pension Plans- Continued

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of
1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey
legislation. PERS provided for employee contributions of 7.50% of employee’s annual
compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate
in PERS. The entity’s contributions to PERS for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and
2019 were $6,426, $5,291 and $9,231.

The total payroll for the year ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $48,361, $54,198
and $68,081. Payroll covered by PERS was 48,361, $54,198, and $68,081.

Significant Legislation

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011 made various changes to the way the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) operates and to the benefit provisions of the system.

Chapter 78’s provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

New members of the PERS hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5 members) will need 30 years
of creditable service and age 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction of
Ya of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65.

The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the PERS is increased from age 63 to 65
for Tier 5 members.

Increases in active member contribution rates. PERS active member rates increase from 5.5%
of annual compensation to the current rate of 7.50% plus an additional 1%.

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to current and
future retirees and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

New employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-provided health benefit
coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage.
The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected
level of coverage. The increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period
for those employed prior to Chapter 78’s effective date with a minimum contribution required to
be at least 1.5% of salary. The 4-year phase in period is now complete.

In addition, this new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension systems’ unfunded
accrued liability (from a level percent of pay method to a level dollar of pay).

Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-
administered retirement systems concerning eligibility, the retirement allowance formula, the
definition of compensation, the positions eligible for service credit, the non-forfeitable right to a
pension, the prosecutor’s part of the PERS and employer contributions to the retirement systems.

Also, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010 changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members of PERS
from the amount of annual compensation to the number of hours worked weekly. Also, it returned
the benefit multiplier for new members of PERS to 1/60th from 1/55th, and it provided that new
members of PERS have the retirement allowance calculated using the average annual
compensation for the last five years of service instead of the last three years of service. New
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members of PERS will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one employer.
Pension service credit will be earned for the highest paid position only. This law also closed the
Prosecutors Part of the PERS to new members and repealed the law for new members that
provided a non-forfeitable right to receive a pension based on the laws of the retirement system
in place at the time 5 years of pension service credit is attained. The law also requires the State
to make its full pension contribution, defined a 1/7th of the required amount, beginning in fiscal
years 2012.

Chapter 3, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary disability
retirement for new members of the PERS with disability insurance coverage similar to that
provided by the State to individuals enrolled in the State’s Defined Contribution Retirement
Program.

NOTE 15: Pension Liabilities

The Authority is not presenting the most recent actuarial disclosures and accruals for its share of liabilities
related to its participation in the Public Employees Retirement System which is administered by the State
of New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). These actuarial calculations of the responsibility
of the Division and those actuarial calculations have not yet been released to the individual participating
entities. As a result of this delay, the Authority is reporting the actuarial calculations from the prior year, we
are unable to determine if these disclosures and accruals will differ materially once the current actuarial
calculations are released

In 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB statement 68. This
statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. This statement changes the
method of reporting the authority’s pension liabilities

The following represents the authority’s pension liabilities as June 30, 2020:
Public Employees’ Retirement System

The Authority has a liability of $78,872 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019 that
was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was

based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2020, the Authority’s proportion was 0.00048366030%, which is a decrease of 49.03%
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.
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For the year ended September 30, 2020, the Authority recognized contra pension expense of -
$186,347. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected & actual experience $ 1,436 $ 279
Changes of assumptions 2,559 33,025
Changes in proportion 14,540 272,720
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 2,696
Total $ 21,231 $ 306,024

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended
September 30,
2021 $ 32,960
2022 106,923
2023 95,476
2024 44,831
2025 4,603
Total $ 284,793

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation
used the following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%

Salary increases:

Through 2026 2.00% — 6.00% (based on years of service)
Thereafter 3.00% - 7.00% (based on years of service)
Investment rate of return: 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income
Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 200 on a generational basis. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree
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NOTE 15: Pension Liabilities — Continued

mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement
rates used to value disable retirees were base on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree
mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on generational basis. Mortality improvement is
based on Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2019.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments
(7.00% at June 30, 2020) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of
trustees and the actuaries. The long term expected rate of return was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following
table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Risk mitigation strategies 3.00% 3.40%
Cash equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Investment grade credit 8.00% 2.67%
High yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private credit 8.00% 7.59%
Real assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real estate 8.00% 9.56%
US equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-US developed markets equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private equity 13.00% 11.42%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made based on 78% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State
employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for local employers. Based on those
assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected
future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 93,938 $ 78,872 $ 66,106

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial report.

NOTE 16: Mortgage Note Payable

The Authority has entered a CDBG — PHA Mortgage Note with the New Jersey Housing and
Mortgage Finance Agency in the amount of $4,505,213. The terms of this note call for zero
percent interest and provided there has been no Event of Default under the Loan Agreement,
annual forgiveness in the amount of 20% of the Principal Sum for a term of five years until the
Loan is forgiven in full. The proceeds of the CDBG Loan will be used to provide repairs to
damaged public housing units, damaged federally-owned housing units and damaged HUD
assisted multi-family units. The project consists of thirty -two rental units that will be occupied by
duly qualified Low- and Moderate-Income families. As of September 30, 2020, the Authority has
drawn down the entire $4,505,213.

NOTE 17: Subsequent Events

The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through June 30, 2022, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and identified no events requiring disclosure.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Authority's proportion of the net pension

liability (asset) 0.0004836603% 0.0009490026% 0.0017861100% 0.0018105703% 0.0029798993% 0.0022650000% 0.0119170000%
Authority's proportionate of the net pension

liability (asset) $ 78,872 $ 170,996 $ 351,676 $ 421,472 $ 882,561 $ 508,341 $ 2,231,256
Authority's covered payroll $ 42,622 $ 54,198 $ 68,081 $ 119,932 $ 150,816 $ 220,506 $ 216,050
Authority's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 185.05% 315.50% 516.56% 351.43% 585.19% 230.53% 1032.75%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension

liability 58.32% 56.27% 53.60% 48.10% 40.14% 47.93% 52.08%

2021 DATA IS NOT YET AVAILABLE

Source: GASB 68 report on Public Employees' Retirement System; Authority records

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to be show information for a 10 year period.
However, information is only currently available for the above listed years.

Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY CONTRIBUTIONS
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 5,291 $ 9,231 $ 18765 $ 21,884 $ 20,560 $ 21,190 $ 21,150
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution 5,291 9,231 18,765 21,884 20,560 21,190 21,150
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 42,622 $ 54,198 $ 68,081 $ 119,932 $ 150,816 $ 220,506 $ 216,050
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 12.41% 17.03% 27.56% 18.25% 13.63% 9.61% 9.79%

2021 DATA IS NOT YET AVAILABLE

Source: GASB 68 report on Public Employees' Retirement System; Authority records

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to be show information for a 10 year period.

However, information is only currently available for the above listed years.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CITY OF OCEAN CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
OPEB SCHEDULE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

2021 2020 2019 2018
Net OPEB Liability $ 207,091 $ 222,441 $ 237,791 $ 368,130
Covered Payroll $ 48,361 $ 42,622 $ 54,198 $ 68,081
Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 428.22% 521.89% 438.74% 540.72%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total OPEB Liability - - - -

CITY OF OCEAN CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
OPEB SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

2021 2020 2019 2018

Required Contributions $ 7,064 $ 7,064 $ 7,064 $ 50,010
Contribution in Relation to the

Required Contribution $ 22414 22,414 22414 22,176
Excess (Deficiency) in Contribution $ 15,350 $ 15,350 $ 15,350 $ (27,834)
Covered Payroll

$ 48,361 $ 42,622 3 54,198 $ 68,081

Contributions as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 46.35% 52.59% 41.36% 32.57%

CITY OF OCEAN CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

Changes in Benefits
- None

Changes in Assumptions

- The discount rate changed to 2.92% from 3.42% in the prior year.
- The cost trend rate remained the same at 8.00%.

29






OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION






0$ 0$ 0% 0$ SallojuaAU| £1T
0$ 8v9'8T$ 0$ 180'Ge$ S19SSY 1aYl0 pue sasuadx3 predaid ZyT
0$ 0$ 0% 0$ Aljiger waln) Jo uswAed 1oj pa1oLIsay - SJUBWISAAU| GET
0$ 0% 0% 0$ po1011SaY - SJUBWISSAU| ZET
0$ 03$ 0% 0$ paloLISaluN - SJUBWISaAU| TET
0$ YIT'2TT$ 0% TLT'.2$ SIUNO22Y |NJIGNOQ 10} SBOUBMO||Y JO 18N ‘SB|qeAIaday [e101 0ZT
0$ 03$ 0% 0$ 9|(eAIa29Y 1SaIalu| panIddyY 62T
0$ 0$ 0% 0$ pneld - SJUN022Y |NJIgNoQq 40} ddueMo|ly T'82T
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ Alanooay pnelq4 8zt
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ N - a|qeAladay sabeblo B ‘sueoT ‘seloN /2T
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ J3Y10 - S1UN022Y |NJIGNOQ 10} SOUBMO|Y Z'92T
0$ 885%- 0% LST'1$- SJUBUS ] - SIUNOJJY |NJIgNOoQ 10} ddUBMO|lY T'9ZT
0$ 0ST'ST$ 0$ 6€0°'0€$ SlueUd ] - 9|geAIfd9Yy SIUN0JIY 92T
000'T$ SNoBUR||9ISIN - 3|0BAIDIY SIUN0IJY GZT

0$ 255'96% 0$ 996'c$ JUSWUIBA0Y IBUI0 - 3|qeAISd8Y SIUN0JJY 1T
03$ €zes s108l01d J18Y10 ANH - 9|geAladay SIunoddyY 22T

0$ 03$ 0% 0$ S109(01d YHd - 3|geAIaday S1unoddy TZT
0$ 188°0LE$ G26$ z6e'681$ ysed [e10l1 00T
0$ 0$ 0$ salljIgel] Jualind Jo JuswAed 1oj pa1oLIsay - ysed GIT
0% 821'12$ 0$ v16'GT$ susoda@ A1N2as Jueua] - ysed ¥IT
0$ 118'592$ 0$ 0$ palousay 1BYlo - ysed €11
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 1uswdojaAa@ pue UONeZIUIBPON - PA1JIISaY - ysed ZTT
0$ 9/5'€8$ GZ6$ 8L¥'€LV$ pausalun - ysed 11T

swels (4a-29a2)
JusWapUT/SIuERID sluelo) >._w>oumw_

3o0|g wawdojarag
Aunwwo) 8121

Jaisesiqg uelo
3o0|g wawdojanag
Aunwwod 69z ¥T

SaIIANOY ssauisng T

pajuasald Aj@181osiq
- un wsuodwo) 19

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30A



0$ 29¢g'esy'8$ 99¢'G9$ YSv'0ST'c$ S92JN0S3aYy JO MO INQ pPaJiajad pue S19SSY [elol 06¢
0$ SZZ'v1$ 0$ 900'2% $92JN0S8Y JO MOJINO pallaled 002
0$ G20'T26'L$ Tvy'v9$ 86.'T09'T$ S19SSY JualIinD-UON |e10l 08T
S2INUSA UIOL Ul SJUBWISAAU| 9/ T
S19ssy 1sylo 1.1
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 1UB1IND UON - 3|JeAISday Sluelo) €/T
1Sed - 1UalN) UON - 9|geAladay sabeblion % ‘sueo ‘S91oN 2/.T
JUaLIND-UON - 9|geAladay sabebllo pue sueoT ‘Se1IoN T/T
0$ G20'T26'L$ Tvy'v9$ 861'T09'T$ uoneldaidag pare|nwinddy Jo 19N ‘S19ssy [euded [e101 09T
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ alnpnaselu] 89T
0$ 0$ Tvy'v9$ 0$ ssalbold ul uononisuo) /97T
0$ 120'ev8'T$- 0$ 09¢'62Y'€$- uoneldaidag pare|nWnIdy 99T
0$ vEY'GEsS 0$ L¥2'€es$ sjuswanoldw| pjoysasea] G9T
0$ 9/8'59% 0$ 650°05$ uonensiuiwpy - Alauiyoe % uswdinb3 ‘ainyuing 9T
0$ S0S'v.L$ 0$ 159'25T$ sbuljjamq - Aisuiyoey % wawdinb3 ‘aunuuing €91
0$ /€2'ST9'6$ 0$ €GS'STT'V$ sbuipjing 29T
0$ 000'€LT$ 0$ 8v9'6LT$ pueq TOT
0$ ZTT'81S$ Gz6$ 0G9'T¥S$ S19SSY Jualn)d [e101 0ST
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ aes 1o} p|aH S19SSY GiT
697'9T$ woi4 ang weibold 1o #iT
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ SO1I0JUBAU| 818]|0SqQ 10} 82UBMO|Y T'EVT
swels (4a-928ao)
UBWaNIUT/SIUEIS) siuels) A1anoday

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30B



0$ 0% 0$ sanljigel] g gsvd 9s€
0$ Juaungd uoN - Aljiger] ueoT GG
0$ 0z2'c$ 03$ €60'T$ 1Ua.LIND UON - S92uUasqy paresuadwo) paniody HSe
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ J8Y10 - saNljigel] Jualnd-uUuoN £G¢
0$ 0$ 000'T$ 0$ sBuimollog BunesadQ - 1ua1InD Jo 18N ‘109 Wia1-Buo gse
€12'S05'v$ abebuo/s108loid [euded - uaiind Jo 18N ‘199 wisl-buo] TGe
0$ €€5'G6$ €e$ 862'66% saijiger] uaun)d [elol OTE
0$ wauny - Ayjiger ueo 8ye
0$ 0$ 0$ 697'9T$ 0] ang - weuboid Jaw| 2yE
0$ 129'ST$ 0$ v12'0T$ Jay10 - sanljigel] paniddy 9vE
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ sailjigel wadnd 1BYlQ Sve
0$ 03$ 0$ 0$ sbuimoliog BunelradQ - 1@ wus1-Buo Jo uoniod uaind g
0$ 03$ 0% 0$ [eude)d - 1o wua1-Buo Jo uoniod ualnd ¥
86177'€$ L€0'G$ anuanay pauieaun zZve
0$ 8zv'12$ 0$ ¥T6'GT$ susoda@ AINoas ueusa] TyE
0$ 9€6'vZS$ ees$ 682'LE$ 1UBWIUIBA0D) 18I0 - 3|geAed SIUN0JIY E£EE
0$ 03$ 0% 0$ s109[01d VHd - 9|qeAed 1UN0J2Y ZEE
swelboid YHd dNH - a|geled S1unoday TEE
0$ 03$ 0% 0$ a|qeled 1saia1u| panIddy GzZg
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ AnjigerT Aousbunuo) paniody e
0$ 099'9$ 0$ 182'c$ UoII0d 1Ualn) - SaouUasqy palesuadwo)d paniddy zze
0$ 1€6$ 0$ 9G68% a|qeled saxe] |[0lhed/abep paniooy Tz
0$ 03$ 0% 0$ anq 1sed sAeq 06< a|geied Slunoddy €TIE
0$ £51'22$ 0$ 8€Z'0T$ sAeq 06 => 9|gehied SUN0JJY ZIE
0$ 03$ 0% 0$ YelplanQ queg TIE
swels (4a-928ao)
UBWaNIUT/SIUEIS) siuels) A1anoday

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30C



0% Z9e'eSr'ss 99€'G9$ vSP'0ST'CS - Ainb3 pue s821N0SaYy JO SMojU| paJialeq ‘sanljigel [eloL 009
0% 99/'€SY'e$ €ee'v9% 80.'7S8'T$ uonisod / S19ssy 19N - Aunb3 g1ol €15
0$ €26',22%- 80T$- 016'25¢$ uonisod 19N pa1msalun #'¢1s
0% 118'59Z$ 0$ 0% uonIsod 19N pawsay ¥#'1T1S
0$ ZI8'STY'e$ Trr'v9$ 86.'T09'T$ S19SSY [ende) ul JUSWISaAUl 18N 17°'80S
0$ §£0'502$ 0% 886'00T$ $92IN0SaY JO MOJjuU| palialdd 00v
0$ T9S'V6.'v$ €20'T$ 8S/.'v6T$ sanljigel] [e101 00¢
0$ 820'669'7$ 000'T$ 097'G6$ safljigel] ualn)-uoN [e10l 0SE

S6S'T6T$ 19€'76% salnljigel] g3d0 pue uoisuad paniody /GE

swels (4a-99a2)
Siuelo) >_0>Oow~u_
wawispnuI/siueID

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30D



03$ 0% 0$ S81I0JUBAU| 819]0SJQ 10} BOUBMO|IY T'EVT
0$ 0$ 0$ S8loJUBAU| £VT
gel'er$ 0$ Gel'ev$ S19SSY 1ayl0 pue sasuadx3 predaid ZyT
0$ 0$ 0$ Aljiger waun)d Jo uswAed o) palollIsay - SIUBWISaAU| GET
0$ 0$ 0$ pa10LISayY - SJUBWISBAU| ZET
0$ 0% 0$ paloLISaluN - Sluswnsanu| TET
G8Z'8ET$ 000'T$- G8Z'6ETS SIUN029Y [NJIgno( 10} S8IUBMO||Y JO 19N ‘S8|geAIaday [e10l1 02T
0$ 0$ 0$ 8|genaday 1salaiu| paniddy 62T
0$ 0$ 0$ pnel - SJUN022JY |NJIgNOQ 40} ddUBMO|lY T'8ZT
0$ 0$ 0$ Alanooay pneld 8zt
0$ 0$ 0$ wa.iIng - a|qeAlsday sabeblo 7 ‘sueo ‘S81oN /2T
03$ 0% 0$ JaY10 - SJUN022Y [NIgNOQ 1o} 8duemMo|ly 2'92T
Gv.'.$- 0% Gil'1$ SlUBUS | - SIUNOJJY [NJIgnog 10} 8dUBMO|lY T°92T
68T'Gv$ 0$ 68T'Gv$ SlUBUd] - B|geAIBdaY SIUN0JJY 9ZT
0$ 000'T$- 000'T$ SNOBUL||I9ISIIA - 8]qeAIBdaY SIUN0JIY GZT
8TS'00T$ 0$ 8TS'00T$ JUBWIUIBA0D) JBYIQO - 8|geAIfday SIUN0JJY 2T
€ze$ 0% €ees s109(01d J18YI0 ANH - 9|qeAIaday SIUN0Y 22T
0$ 0$ 0$ s109[01d YHd - 9|qeAIaday SJunoddy 12T
86T'T98% 0$ 86T'T98% yseD [e101 00T
0$ 0$ 0% salljigel] Jualind Jo JuswAed 1oj pa1olisay - ysed GIT
Zve'LES 0% Zre'Les susoda@ A1N%as Jueus] - ysed ¥IT
118'592$ 0$ 118'592$ palLsay J1ByYl0 - ysed €TT
03$ 0$ 0$ uswdojana@ pue uoleziuispoA - PaloLISay - ysed ZIT
6.6'255$ 0$ 616'/G5% pamsalun - ysed 11T
[exo1L Win3 [e101qnS

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30E



0$ 0$ 0$ YelplanQ queg TIE
€TL'TS9'0TS 697 LT$- Z81'699'0T$ S92JN0S8Y JO MOJJINO pallajeq pue S1assY [el101 062
1€2'TC$ 0$ 1€2'12$ $821N0Say JO MOIINO pauslad 002
v92'185'6% 0$ ¥92'185'6% S19SSY JualIND-UON [e101 08T
0$ 0% 0$ SaINUaA JUIOC Ul SJUSWISAAU| 9/T

0$ 0$ 0$ S)1assy 1ayl0 ¥.T

0$ 0$ 0$ 1UB1IND UON - 9]|qeAIgday Ssluels €41

0$ 0$ 0$ 1Sed - 1UalnN) UON - 3|geAlsday sabeblion % ‘sueo ‘S910N Z/.T

0$ 0$ 0$ JUBIND-UON - 3|geAladay sabeblo|y pue sueo ‘SaloN TLT
¥92'185'6% 0$ ¥92'185'6% uolelnaidag pare|NWwnddY Jo 19N ‘S19ssY [euded 101 09T
0$ 0$ 0$ aimonnselu] 89T
Tvv'v9$ 0$ Tvv'v9$ ssalboid ul uononasuod /9T
18€'212'9%- 0$ 18€'2/2'9% uoneroaida@ parenwinddy 99T
189'89€'T$ 0$ 189'89€'T$ sluawanoidw| pjoyssea] G9T
GE6'STTS 0$ GE6'STTS uonensiuiwpy - Aisuiyoe % uswdinb3 ‘ainyuing 9T
96T'/22% 0$ 9sT'/22$ sbuljjamq@ - Aisuiyoey % wawdinb3 ‘ainiuuing €91
06.'0€L'ST$ 0$ 06.'0€L'€T$ sBuipjing 29T
819'25€$ 0$ 8v9'zse$ pueq 19T
8TZ'€V0'T$ 697'LT$- 189'090'T$ S]asSsy 1ualin) [e101 0ST
0$ 0$ 0$ aJes 1o} p|oH S19SSY ST

0$ 697'9TS$- 697'9T$ wol4 ang weiboid Jalu| T

[eloL NRE! [eloiqns

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30F



296'82$ 0$ 296'S82$ sanljiqel] 9340 pue uoisuad paniddy /GE
0% 0% 03 sanljiqeln g gsv4d 9s€
0$ 0$ 0$ Jua.LIND UON - AlljIger] ueo GSE
£Te'e$ 0$ £TE'ES 1UB1IND UON - S82uUasqy palresuadwo) paniody Ge
0$ 0$ 0$ J3Y10 - sanljigel] JUalNo-UoN £GE
0$ 000'T$- 000'T$ sbuimoltiog Buneiado - uannd Jo 19N ‘1gaq wial-buo zge
€12'S05'v$ 0$ €12'305'v$ abebuon/s100loid reuded - uaiin)d Jo 19N ‘19 wisl-buo] TGe
G6E'8LTS 697'9TS$- v98'v6T$ sainljigel] uaun)d 210l OTE
03$ 0% 0$ waun) - Aljiger] ueo 8ve
0$ 697'9TS$- 697'9T$ 0] anQ - weibold 8| L¥E
1v8'62$ 0% 1v8'6Z$ JaY10O - sanljiger] paniddy 9vs
0$ 0$ 0$ saijigel usund JBylo Sve
0$ 0$ 0$ sbuimoliog bBunelado - 1ga@ wus1-BuoT Jo uoniod Jualnd e
0$ 0% 0$ reudeD - 1g8g wia1-Buo Jo uoiod waN) £VE
GES'8$ 0% GES'8$ anuanay pauleaun zve
Zve'LeS 0$ Tre'LES susoda@ AIN2as ueUS] TYE
8G¢'29% 0$ 85¢'29% JUBWUIBA0D JBLIO - d|qehed SIUN0IDY €€€
0$ 0$ 0$ s109l01d WHd - 9|qeAed 1UNOJJY ZEE
03$ 0% 0$ swelbold YHd ANH - a|gefed S1unoddy TEE
0$ 0$ 0$ a|qeled 1saia1u| panIddy GZg
0$ 0$ 0$ Aljigel] Aouabunuo) paniody zZe
Tv6'6$ 0$ 1v6'6$ uoII0d 1uaun) - Saouasqy palesuadwo)d paniody zze
18.'T$ 0$ 18L'T$ a|gehed soxe] [j0lhed/ebepn paniddy TZE
0$ 0% 0$ anq 1sed sAeq 06< a|gehied slunoddy £IE
169°2€$ 0% 169°2€$ sAeq 06 => 9|qeled SIUNOJIIY ZTE
[eloL NRE! [eloiqns

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30G



€T.'1S9'0T$ 691" LTS$- 281'699'0T$ - AInb3 pue sa821n0Say JOo SMojju| paliajad ‘sanljigqel] [e101 009
108'2.€'S$ 0$ 108'2.€'S$ uonisod / S19ssy 19N - Aunb3 [e101 €15
6.8'v2$ 0$ 6.8'v2$ uonIsod 18N pawmsalun 215
118'59¢$ 0$ 1/8'592$ uonsod 19N papussy v'11S
1G0'280'S$ 0$ 150'280'G$ S19ssy [eude) ul JuswisaAul 18N °'80G
€20'90€$ 0$ €20'90€$ S921N0SaYy JO MOJjuU| pausjad 00v
€88'2.6'7$ 69Y'LT$- 2GE'066'7$ salljigel [e10l 00E
88V 6. 'v$ 000°1$- 88Y7'G6.L'V$ sallljigel] uaun)-uUoN [e1ol 0GE
[eloL WIT3 [exoans

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Alewwing 199ys aouefeg apip A1nug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30H



0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ saueles aAlelSIULIWPY 00TT6

021'956'2$ TTZ'9.9% V' v9$ SOv'1€9% 9NU3A3Y [e10]1 0000.L

0$ 03$ 0% 0$ P3101ISaY - BWODdU| JUBWISBAUl 0002/

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ s)essy [endeD Jo 9|es uo Sso7 Jo uresS 009T.L

0$ 097'8€$ 0$ 06€'22$ anuaAay I8yl0 00STL

0$ 182$ 0$ 0$ A1an029y pnely 00vT.

0$ 0$ 0% 0$ S19SSY JO 9[eS JO 1s0D 0TETL

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 3[es 10} P|9H S19SSY J0 uonisodsig wolj spaadold 00ET.

0$ 0$ 0% 0$ awoou| 1salaiu| ab6ebuoN 002TL

0$ vS$ 0$ 9% paldiIsalun - swodu| JuswissAul 00TT.L

02i7'956'c$ §50'vveS Tvi'v9$ 0$ Sjuel9 JuswuianoD J18ylO 00801

anuanay 994 [e101 00,02

0$ S99 I8Yl0 05.0.L

994 92IAIBS BulT 1UoI4 0%720L

994 buideay oog 0€L0L

994 1uswabeur 19SSy 02202

994 Juawabeue\ 0120/

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ sjueso [ended QT90L

0$ 0$ 0$ ze'6.€$ swels bunelado YHd ANH 00902

0$ T9€'€6C$ 0$ 6T.'62C$ onuaAay Jueua] [elol 00S0.

0$ G6E'ES 0$ 0$ Jay10 - snuaAsy ueual 00v0.

0$ 996'68¢$ 0% 6T.'622$ SNUBA3Y [ejuay Jueua] 19N 00£0.L
o0 | sumio Ranoos

3o0|g wawdojarag
Aunwwo) 8121

Jaisesiqg uelo
3o0|g wawdojanag
Aunwwod 69z ¥T

SaIIANOY ssauisng T

pajuasald Aj@181osiq
- un wsuodwo) 19

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

Arewwnsg asuadx3 pue anuanay apIp A1lug
CN ‘ALID NV3DO0
(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

301



0$ 0$ 0% 0$ sannn - suonnquuo) suag sakoldw 00LE6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 1amas 009€6
0$ 0$ 0% 0$ logeT 00S€6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ [8n4 00t€6
0$ GGE'ET$ 0$ v.6'82% se9 00EEC6
0$ 069'06$ 0$ 055'8$ Ano109|3 002€6
0$ €GT'0€$ 0$ TE6'79$ 181\ 00TE6
0% 09'L2$ 0$ v.T'ST$ S8JIAISS JueUa] [el0] 005¢6
0$ 09v'22$ 0$ ¥.T'GT$ 19YlO - S|VINISS JUeUa . 007¢6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ S9OIAI9S JURUS ] - suonnquuo) Wausg aakoldw3 00£26
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ S1S0D Uoned0|9y 00226
0$ 0$ 0% 0$ Salle[es - S80IAISS JUeUS] 00TZ6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 994 Juswabeue 18SSY 00026
0$ YEQ'VLTS 80T$ 209'16$ aAnessIuIWPY - Bunesado [e101 000T6
0$ ¥69'TV$ 80T$ T6.°'TC$ 1BYl1O 006T6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ pesyIan0 paledolly 0T8T6
0$ 0$ 0% 0$ [oneIL 00816
0$ 80V'v$ 0$ 259's$ asuadx3 [eba7 00.T6
0$ 969% 0% z5e$ sesuadx3 82140 00916
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ aAITelISIUIWPY - SUONNALIUOI Jysuag aakojdw 00ST6
0$ 80v'1$ 0% 696% Bunaxre|N pue BuisdBAPY 00116
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 994 buidasy-y00g 0TET6

8/9'6TT$ 885'09% 994 JuswabeuelN 00ET6
0$ 05.'9$ 0$ 052'2$ saa4 bunipny 00216

o | S R

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug
CN ‘ALID NV3DO0
(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

30J



0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ sabello - 199p ped 00596
0$ ¥00'0T$ 0$ 0$ Sluay Jueua] -19ap peg 0096
0% 6.5'GT$ 0$ 92.'21$ saxe] Jo nar ul siuswAed 00£96
0$ 119% 0% gees S90UBasqy paresuadwod 0TZ96
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ sasuadxg [elauaD JBYIO 00296
0% £92'€9$ 0$ LT6'9€$ swnjwald adueinsul [eJoL 00T96
0$ 82v'8T$ 0$ 06L'VT$ aouelInsu| JBYI0 IV 07196
0$ 862% 0$ £99% uonesuadwo) S,usWiIOM 0ETI6
0$ 819'C$ 0$ S1S'6% aouelnsu| Anjiger] 02196
0$ 6T6'TV$ 0$ 6v6'TT$ souelnsu| Auadoid 0TT96
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ S9IIAIBS BAI19101d [B101 000S6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ S9JINIBS BANJ810Id - suonnguiuo) auag 8akoldw 00556
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 1810 - S9IINIBS 9AI0810Id 00ES6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ SIS0 19BIU0D JBYIO - SBIINIBS 9AI810Id 00256
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ loge - S92INIBS 9A1IB10Id 00TS6
0$ ¥2'202$ 0$ Gv2'G8% 9J3UueUBUIBN €101 0006
0$ £/8'v$ 0$ 6E5T'EZ$ doueUIUIR AreulplQ - suonnquiuo) euag aakojdwa 00G6

€6LTTTS 825'6E$ s1oeNuUOD suonesadO pue sdueusiue AreulpiO 00EY6
0$ 2er'LT$ 0% £9€'9% pue s[euale|y - suonelado pue soueusluie|\ Areulplo 0026
0$ 9ST'zeS 0$ 502'9T$ logeT - suonesadQ pue soueuslurey Areuiplo 00TH6
0$ 86T'VETS 0$ GSY'20T$ SaliN elolL 000c€6
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ asuadx3 saninn BYyo 008<6

o0 | sumio Ranoos

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30K



027'956'2$- 0$ 0$ 8ZT'T$- O Jaysuen Bunesado 0zZ00T

0% 027'956'2$ 0$ 82T'T$ u| Jajsuel] Bunesisdo 0TOOT

0% 868'088% 80T$ €12'12v$ mmmcoaxm_ [e101 00006

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ asuadx3 way snun Buyema 00826

Spun4 [eljuswuian09 - HcmE\ﬁmn_ _.ma_oc_\_n_ 19°ed 00..6

Spun4 [eljuswuisanog - w>m_uso _mH_anu 009/.6

0% 0% 0$ 0$ S9ss07 pneld 00S.6

0$ 6€8'€52$ 0% 128'9.$ asuadx3 uoneraidaa 00v.6

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ ul-Anjiqenod dvH 0SEL6

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ siuswAed soue)sissy BuisnoH 00£.6

0% 0$ 0$ 0$ pazifended-uoN - s8sso Allensed 00226

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ soueusjurel\ Areuipioenxs 00T.6

027'956°2$ 26T'SVS €ee'v9s £66'082$ sosuadx3 BuneiadQ JaA0 anuanay BuneladQ Jo SS89X3 00026

0$ 650°'€€9% 80T$ 25V vrES sasuadx3z BunesadO €101 00696

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 1S0D uoneziuowy pue asuadx3 1saislu| [e101 00/96

0% 0$ 0$ 0$ S1S0D aNnss| puog Jo uoneznlowy 0£.96

0$ 0$ 0$ (wia L BuoT pue LoyYS) ajqeked s810N UO 1saI8lU| 02296

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ a|qeled (spuog o) abebLOo Jo 1saIsw| 0TL96

0% 092'92% 0% 650°€T$ sasuadx3 [eJaua9 JaY1O [B10L 00096

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ asuadx3 soueIanas 00896

0% 0$ 0$ 0% 19Y10 - 199p ped 00996
(4a-99a9)

Siuelo Siuelo) \C®>Oomm
juswapug/suels

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Arewwnsg asuadx3 pue anuanay apIp A1lug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30L



AInb3 suswAed aouelsissy BuisnoH 08TTT

Ainb3 884 sAnensiuwpy 0LTTT

1810 - SIUN022Y [NjIgnoQ 4o} aduemo|y Ul sabueyd Q0TTI

Buijjamq - s1uNo29y |NJIgNOQ 10} ddUBMO||Y Ul Sabueyd 060TT

Aljiger sujauag aouelanas/wia] [eroads ul sabueyd 080TT

Aljiger uonisuel] uoisuad paziubodaiun ul sabueyd 0/0TT

aoueeg Aljiger] wabunuo) ul sabueyd 090TT

aouejeg aouasqy paresuadwo) ul sabuey)d 0S0TT

626'GEES 61905 pue siajsuel] Anb3 ‘syusunsnlpy polad Jolld Ov0TT

0$ vOT'ZLES 0$ 168'€65'T$ Aunb3 Buuuibag 0€0TT

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ siuawAed edidulld 1gaQ [enuuy palinbay 0z0TT

0$ EEL'SVL'T$ £EEVO$ ZET'0TES [e101 (JI8pUN) JBAQ SNUBASY [e10] JO (Aousioyaq) sseax3 0000T

0Z1'956'2$- 02'956'2$ 0$ 0$ (sesn) saainos Buroueuy JaLYO €101 00TOT

0% 0% 0% 0% nQ - F_m._mo._n_ pue Hom._o‘_n_ ugaMla( siajsuel] H600T

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ u| - 1099loid pue weiboid usamiaq siajsuell £600T

0% INQ Jajsuel] ysed SSadxg How.—o._n_ 191Ul ¢600T

0$ u| Jajsuel] yse) ssaaxg 109loid J181u| TE00T

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ (sso/ures 19N) swayj [er0ads 08007

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ SsoT/ures 19N ‘sway| Areuipioenxs 0,007

S9|es >thO‘_n_ wolj Speadold 0900T

spuog pue sueo ‘SaloN Wolj Spaadold 0S00T

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ NuN auodwo) oywoly sidjsuel] Buresado 0¥00T

0s$ 0$ 0$ JUBWIUIBA0D) Arewlld o)jwol) siajsuel] Bunelado 0£00T

swels (4a-928ao)

JUBWBNUZ/SIVEIS) siuels) A1anoday

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30M



0$ spun4 Jo1oe BuisnoH awaoe|day TO6ET

0$ siuswAed 921A18S 1990 d44D OTSET

0$ saseyaind ainjonisenu) 099TT

0$ saseyoind siuawanoidw| pjoyasea] 0S9TT

0$ saseydind aAiessiuiwpy - wawdinb3 % ainuuing Ov9TT

0$ saseyaind buljamq - wuawdinb3 % ainuuing Q91T

0$ saseyaind bulp|ing 0z9TT

0$ saseyoind puet QT9TT

795'88€$ ysed ssadx3 0.2TT

0 6€8 0 89% pasesaT SYyIuoN uN JO JsquinN OTZTT

0 2.6 0 08v a|gejleny SYIuo Hun 06TTT

swels (4@-29a2)
JUBWBNUZ/SIVEIS) siuels) A1anoday

320|g wawdojrag
e e

Ja1sesiq el
300|g wawdojanaq
Aunwwod 692 ¥T

SaNIANDY ssauisng T

pawasald Ag1810sIq
- Iun wauodwo) 1'9

e10] 109loid

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug
CN ‘ALID NV3DO0
(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

30N



000'6$ 0$ 000'6$ se94 Bunipny 00216
0$ 0$ 0$ sale[es aAessIuIWPY 00TT6
L1v'82E'V$ 0% 11v'82E'v$ SNUBA3Y [el0l 0000.L
0$ 0$ 0$ P81oLISaY - BWODU| JUBWISSAU| 000Z.
0$ 0$ 0$ s1essy [endeD Jo a[es uo sso7 10 uresS 009T.L
0S8'09% 0$ 058°'09% onuaAly IBYlO 00STL.L
182% 0$ 182% Kianooday pneld 00vTL
0$ 0$ 0$ S19SSY JO 9[eS J0 1s0D QTETL
0$ 0$ 0$ 3[es 10} P|9H S18SSY J0 uonisodsiq wolj speadoid 00ET.L
0$ 0$ 0$ awoou] 1saiaiu| abebuoN 002TL
8TT$ 0% STTS Pa1dLSaIuUN - sWOJU| JUswilsaAu|l Q0TT.L
9T6'79€'c$ 0$ 9T6'v9c'e$ sluel9 JuswuIsno9 1IBsYlo 00802
0$ 0$ 0$ anuaAdY 994 [e101 000/
0$ 0$ 0$ s@84 JaYyl0 050/
0$ 0$ 0$ 994 9JIAISS BuUIT WoIH 020L
0$ 0$ 0$ 994 Buidaay yoog 0€.20L
0$ 0$ 0$ 994 Juswabeue 18ssy 0202
0% 0% 0$ 994 JuswsabeueN 01202
0$ 0$ 0$ swelo [ended 07902
78T'6LE$ 0$ Z82'6.5$ sueso Bunessdo YHd ANH 00902
080'€25$ 0$ 080'€25$ anuaAay ueua] [e10l 00S0L
S6e'e$ 0$ 565'c$ 18U10 - 8nusaAay weusa| 00¥0L
$89'6TS$ 0$ $89'6TS$ aNuUaAlY [eluay Jueua] 18N 00£0L
[elol WIT3 [eloigns

300

T20Z/0E/60 -pu3l JeaA [edsiH upny a|buis/palpny :adA1 uoissiwgns
Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug

CN ‘ALID NVI0O0
(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ



0$ 0$ 0$ asuadx3 saninn 1BYI0 008E6
0$ 0$ 0$ sanN - suonnquuo) auag adkoldw3 00LE6
0$ 0$ 0$ 1amMas 009€6
0$ 0$ 0$ loge1 00SE6
0$ 0$ 0$ [an4 00v€6
62E'2r$ 0% 62E'er$ se9 00€E6
0v72'66% 0$ 0v2'66% Awouos|3 00ze6
¥80'G6$ 0$ ¥80'6$ 181\ 00TE6
7€9'2r$ 0$ ¥€9'2r$ S9JINISS Jueud| [el0l 00526
v€9'Zr$ 0$ v€9'2v$ 18Y10 - S8JINIBS JUeUS] 007C6
0$ 0$ 0$ S92IAISS JUBUS | - SuonnguIuoD Jiysuag eakoldws 00EZ6
0$ 0$ 0$ S1S0D uoned0|dy 00226
0$ 0$ 0$ salle[es - S8JIAIBS JUeUS] 00TZ6
0$ 0$ 0$ 994 Juswabeue 18sSY 00026
¥7£'992$ 0$ ¥v€'992$ aAlTeSIUIWPY - BuiresadO €101 00016
€65'€9% 0% €65°'€9% 1BYlIO 006T6
0$ 0$ 0$ pesyIanQ paledo|ly 0T8T6
0$ 0$ 0$ [oneIL 00816
090°0T$ 0$ 090'0T$ asuadx3 [eba7 00,16
8v0'T$ 0$ 8v0'T$ sasuadx3 82140 00916
0$ 0$ 0$ dAeNSIUIWLPY - SUONNALIU0D Jauag aakoldw 00ST6
L1ET$ 0$ 11€'T$ Bunaxiey pue BuisiaApY 00YT6
0$ 0$ 0$ 894 buidesy-y00g 0TET6
99Z'08T$ 0$ 992'08T$ 994 JuswabeueN 00£T6
[elol WIT3 [eloigns

30P

T20Z/0E/60 -pu3l JeaA [edsiH upny a|buis/palpny :adA1 uoissiwgns
Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug

CN ‘ALID NVI0O0
(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ



0$ 0$ 0$ 18Yl0 - 199p ped 00996
0% 0% 0% sabello - 199p peg 00596
¥00'0T$ 0$ ¥00'0T$ Sjuay ueusa] -19sp ped 00196
S0€'82% 0$ S0€'82$ saxe] Jo nal ul sjuswAhed 00£96
0T0'T$ 0$ 0T0'T$ S90U8sqy paresuadwod 0TZ96
0$ 0$ 0$ sasuadx3 [elaua9 JBYIO 00296
08T'00T$ 0$ 08T'00T$ swiniwsald sdjuelnsul [eloL 00T96
81Z'ce$ 0$ 8TZ'ce$ doueInsu| JBYIO |IV 0rT96
T96$ 0% 196$ uonesuadwo) s,UsW}IOM 0ETI6
eET'TTS 0$ EET'CTS doueinsu| Ayjiger 02196
898'c5$ 0$ 898'c5$ aoueinsu| Auadoid 0TT96
0$ 0$ 0$ S8JIAI9S 9A1199]0Id [e101 00056
0$ 0$ 0$ S9OIAIBS 8ANJB10Id - suonNgUIu0) 1duag askojdwy 00556
0$ 0$ 0$ 1810 - S9IINIBS dAII810Id 00ES6
0$ 0$ 0$ SIS0 19BIIU0D JBYIO - SBIINIBS 9ANI810Id 00256
0$ 0$ 0$ loge - S82INISS 9AII310Id 00TS6
68'262$ 0$ 68Y'262$ doueualUle\ [Bl0L 00076
210'69% 0% Z10'69% doueUBUIR AreulplQ - suonnquiuo) weuag 8akojdw 00S6
TEE'TSTS TEE'TSTS s10eNUOD suonesadO pue adueusiueN AreulpiO 00EY6
§8.'€2$ 0$ 58.'€Z$ pue sjeudle|y - suonelado pue soueusiuie\ Areulplo 0026
T9€'8Y$ 0$ T9E'8V$ logeT - suoneladQ pue sdueuslurey Areulplo 00T6
€69'9€C$ 0$ €G69'9€C$ sainn [elol 0006
[elol WIT3 [eloigns

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug
CN ‘ALID NV3DO0
(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30Q



(0]

0$ 0$ 0$ JusWIUIBN09) Alewlld oywol) siajsuel] BuneladO 0£00T

875'/G6'2$- 0$ 875 1G6'2$- O Jajsuen Bunessado 0Z00T

8Y5'/56'C$ 0$ 8Y5'/56'C$ uj Jsjsuel] Bunessdo 0TOOT

6.2'80€'T$ 0$ 6.2'80€'T$ sasuadx3 [e101 00006

0$ 0$ 0$ asuadx3 ey snun Buyema 00826

Spun4 [RIUBWIUIBA0S) - JuswAed edidulld 199d 00226

spun4 [eluawulanos - sAkepno reuded 009.6

0$ 0$ 0$ S$9SS07] pneld 005926

099'0€€$ 0% 099'0£€$ asuadx3 uoneraidaa 00v.6

0$ 0$ 0$ ul-Aujigeriod dvH 0S€.26

0$ 0% 0% sluawAed aduelsissy BUISNOH 00E.6

0$ 0$ 0$ pazijelded-uoN - sassoT Allensed 00zZ.6

0% 0% 0% aourUalUIeN Areuipioenx3 Q0T.6

858'05E'E$ 0$ 858'05£'€$ sasuadx3 BueladQ JaA0 anuanay BunesadQ Jo SS89X3 00026

6T9°2.6% 0$ 619'2.6% sasuadx3 Bunesado €101 00696

0% 0% 0% 1S0D uoneziIowy pue asuadx3 1salalu| €101 00,96

0$ 0$ 0$ S1S0) aNss| puog Jo uoneziowy 0€.96

0$ 0$ 0$ (wia1 BuoT pue Loys) ajqeled s8I0N UO I1SaIBU| 02296

0$ 0$ 0$ a|qeked (spuog Jo) abebuo Jo 1sa181u] 0T.96

6TE'6ES 0$ 6TE'6ES sasuadx3 [essusn JaylO [e10L 00096

0% 0% 0% asuadx3 aouelanas 00896
[eloL NRE! [eons

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30R



T

2svT 0 414 a|gejleny SUYIUOIN Hun 06TTT

AInb3 suswAed aourisissy BuisnoH 08TTT

Ainb3 sa4 sAnensiulwpyY 0/TTT

19Y10 - SIUN0JJY |NJIgNOQJ 10J 23UeMO||y Ul mwmcmco O0OTTT

Buljamq - S1UNO22Y |NIgNOQ Jo) ddueMO||Y Ul sabueyd 060TT

Aljiger sujauag aouelanas/wia] [eroads ul sabueyd 080TT

Aliger] uonisuel] uoisuad paziubodaiun ul sabueyd 0.0TT

aoueleg Aujiger webunuod ul sebueyd 090TT

aouerjeg auasqy paresuadwo) ul sabueyd 0S0TT

809'98¢$ 0$ 809'98¢$ pue sigjsuel] Annb3 ‘sjuswisnlpy pousd Joud 0v0TT

100'996'T$ 0$ T100'996'T$ Ainb3 Buuuibag 0€0TT

0$ 0$ 0$ suswAhed [ediouud 1gaq [enuuy paiinbsy 0z0TT

86T°020°S$ 0$ 86T'020'c$ [e101 (J8pun) JAQ BNUBASY [e101 JO (Aoudroyaq) sseox3 0000T

0$ 0$ 0$ (sasn) sad1nos Budueuy J1dUYI0 [€101 00TOT

0$ 0$ 0$ 1NO - Wwelboid pue 198(0ld usamiag siajsuell +600T

0% 0% 0% uj - uow.—o._n_ pue Em\_mo‘_n_ ugaM]a( siajsuel] £600T

0$ 0$ 0$ INO J8ysuel] yse)d ssaax3 108foid 18| 2600T

0$ 0$ 0$ uj Jsjsuel] yseDd ssaax3 108loid Ja1ul T600T

0$ 0$ 0$ (sso/ure9 19N) sway [e10ads 0800T

0$ 0$ 0$ sso/ure 18N ‘sway| Areuipioenx3 02007

sajes Auadolid wolj speadold 0900T

Spuog pue sueo] ‘S910N wolj Speadlld 0S00T

0$ 0$ 0$ 1uuN wauodwo) oywol) siajsuel] Buneiado 0v00T
[e1ol W3 lejo)gns

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30S



0$ 0$ spun4 Jojoe4 BuisnoH uswaoe|day TO6ET
03$ 03$ siuswAed 921A18S 1080 d44D OTSET
03$ 0$ saseyaind ainoniiselnu] 099TT
0$ 0$ saseyalnd suawanoldw| pjoyases] 0S9TT
0s$ 0$ saseydind aAnessiuIwpY - lJuawdinb3 % ainuuing Oy9TT
0$ 0$ saseyaind buljjamq - uswdinb3 % ainyuuing Q£9TT
0$ 0$ saseyaind buip|ing 0zZ9TT
03$ 03$ saseyaind pue OT911T

T95'88€$ T95'88€$ ysed ssadX3 0LZTT
LOET 0 LOET paseaT SYIUO 1un Jo JIsquinN 0TZTT
[eloL Win3 [el01ans

T202/0€/60 :pul JesA [edslS

upny a|BuIS/paupny :adA L uoissiugns

Arewwns asuadx3 pue anuanay apip Alnug

CN ‘ALID NV3OO0

(€S0CN) Aoyiny BuisnoH AuD uesoQ

30T



- 0026.°L91°€ $ 00°/82°€TL $ 00°S0S'v¥¥'C $ 0026L'29L'E $ oUE)SISSY |esdpa [BjoL
- 00'26.°291°€ 00°'/82°¢CL 00°S0S‘viv'C 00'26.°29L°¢ juawdojanaq ueqin pue BuisnoH |ejoL
- 00'¥92°80%‘C 00'%92'80v'2 00'%92'80v'2 00'€L2'S0S'Y 12/0¢/6 0z/L/0L 69CvL sueo] A1an008y Ja)sesiq Juelo
300|g juswdojanaq Ayunwiwo) Apues auesunH
- 00'L¥2'9e 00°'L¥2'9€ 00°'L¥Z'9€ 00°'L¥2'9€ 12/0€/6 0zZ/L/0L 8levl spund jueis 9900
- 008z} 00’8zl 00'8zl'l 00'8zL') 12/0€/6 0zZ/L/0L [7X:84% weiboid pund [exde) - BuisnoH oljand
- 00'65L°22L $ 00'65L°cCL $ $ 0065L°CCL $ 0065L°cCL 12/0c/6 0zZ/L/0L 0S8'vL weiboud BuisnoH uelpu| pue dljgnd
juswdojanaq uequn pue BuisnoH
sjuaidioay-qng 0} lejo] Jal1g ybnouy) ssed paziubooay JunoWY piemy o] wol4 JaquinN Ya4do a1 weibold/loyuels
ybnoly] passed ERI anuanay 10 weuboid polad jueis ybnouy | -ssed/lojuels) ajels Jo [elopad
(OW3N) 10 sydieoay

sain)puadx3 Aleyabpng

1202 ‘0€ ¥39IN3Ld3S A3ANT ¥VIA FHL ¥O4

SQAUVMY TVH3A3d 40 STUNLIANIAXT 40 ITNAIHOS

ALIRMOHLNY ONISNOH ALID NV3JO0 40 ALID

31






OTHER REPORTS & COMMENTS






PR
FORD - SCOTT

& ASSOCIATES, L.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1535 HAVEN AVENUE « OCEAN CITY, NJ - 08226
PHONE 609.399.6333 « FAX 609.399.3710
www.ford-scott.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Board of Commissioners -
Housing Authority of the City
of Ocean City
Ocean City, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and in compliance with audit requirements as
prescribed by the Bureau of Authority Regulation, Division of Local Government Services, Department of
Community Affairs, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the business-type activities of
Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 30, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ford, Scott & Hssociates, L. L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leon P. (ostello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Registered Municipal Accountant
No. 393

June 30, 2022
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& ASSOCIATES, L.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1535 HAVEN AVENUE « OCEAN CITY, NJ - 08226
PHONE 609.399.6333 « FAX 609.399.3710
www.ford-scott.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Honorable Chairman and Members
of the Board of Commissioners -
Housing Authority of the City
of Ocean City
Ocean City, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City in the County of Cape May, State of
New Jersey’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Housing Authority of the City of
Ocean City’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021. The Housing Authority of
the City of Ocean City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing Authority of the City of
Ocean City’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
OMB Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Housing Authority of
the City of Ocean City’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Housing Authority of
the City of Ocean City’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Uniform Guidance but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority
of the City of Ocean City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ford, Scott & Hssociates, L. L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leonw P. (ostello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Registered Municipal Accountant
No. 393

June 30, 2022
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Note 1: General

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant
activity of the Housing Authority of the City of Ocean City (the “Authority”) under programs of the federal
government for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented
in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is
not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the
Authority.

Note 2: Basis of Accounting

Expenditures reported on this Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S Code of Federal
Regulation Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. The Authority has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guidance

Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with amounts reported in the Authority's financial
statements.

Note 4: Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF OCEAN CITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

L SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Modified Opinion

Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material Weakness identified? No
2) Significant Deficiency identified? None Reported

Non-Compliance material to Financial
Statements noted? No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
1) Material weakness identified? No
2) Significant deficiencies identified? None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: An Unmodified Opinion was issued

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
In accordance with section .510(a) of Uniform Guidance? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.269 Community Development Block Grant Disaster
Recovery Loan

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

Il FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, our audit disclosed no findings relating to the financial
statements that are required to be reported under this section.

Il FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTION COSTS

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS:

Our audit disclosed no matters to be reported.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS:

There were no findings in the prior year.
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